
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Performance/Administration 
Cabinet Committee

Members of the Performance/Administration Cabinet Committee of Gravesham Borough 
Council are summoned to attend a meeting to be held at the  on Thursday, 5 July 2018 at 7.30 
pm when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be transacted.

S Kilkie
Assistant Director (Communities)

Agenda

Part A 

Items likely to be considered in Public
1. Apologies 

2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. To considered whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or those (if any) in Part B in public. 

5. Corporate Performance Update – Quarter Four 2017-18 (Pages 7 - 18)

To present Members of the Performance and Administration Committee 
with an update against the Performance Management Framework, as set 
out within the council’s Corporate Plan 2015-19, for Quarter Four 2017-
18 (January to March 2018). 

6. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency. 

7. Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 

Public Document Pack



Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.
 

Part B 
 

Items likely to be considered in Private

None. 

Members

Cllr Derek Shelbrooke (Chair)
Cllr John Knight (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Conrad Broadley
Brian Francis
Rob Halpin
Gary Harding
Jordan Meade
Peter Scollard
Narinder Singh Thandi

Substitutes: To be notified



1

Performance/Administration Cabinet Committee

Tuesday, 27 March 2018 7.30 pm

Present:

Cllr Derek Shelbrooke (Chair)
Cllr John Knight (Vice-Chair) 

Cllrs: Gurjit Bains
Conrad Broadley
Colin Caller
Brian Francis
David Hurley
Peter Scollard
Narinder Singh Thandi

Mike Bytheway Service Manager (Revenues & Benefits)  
Ben Turner 
Jackie Baker
Glen Pritchard

Corporate Performance Manager 
Assistant Manager Revenues & Benefits
Assistant Manager Local Taxation

Chris Wakeford Committee Services Officer (Scrutiny)

15. Apologies 

An apology for absence was received from Cllr Gary Harding; Cllr Gurjit Bains attended as 
his substitute.

16. Minutes 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 2017 were signed by the Chair.

17. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest were made. 

18. Corporate Performance Update – Quarter Three 2017-18 (October to 
December 2017) 

The Corporate Performance Manager presented Members of the Performance and 
Administration Committee with an update against the Performance Management 
Framework, as set out within the council’s Corporate Plan 2015-19, for Quarter Three 2017-
18 (October to December 2017).

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Performance/Administration Cabinet Committee 27.03.2018

2

The Corporate Performance Manager explained that the Performance & Administration 
portfolio has a successful track record in terms of its level of performance and, as a result, 
has overseen consistent increases to the targets associated with its performance measures. 
Against that background it was noted that three of the performance measures did not meet 
their target for Quarter Three 2017-18. 

The Corporate Performance Manager highlighted the typographical error on page 16 where 
‘30 September 2017’ should be ’31 December 2017’.

The Service Manager (Revenues & Benefits), Assistant Manager Revenues & Benefits and 
the Corporate Performance Manager fielded questions from the Committee and highlighted 
the following:

 Investigation activity during the quarter has produced the following results;
• £1917.90 of additional council tax owed due to the removal of discounts or 
exemptions, plus an additional £2547.52 in future years where discounts no longer 
apply.
• Three people have received £70 penalties for negligent failure to report changes 
affecting their entitlement to a council tax discount /exemption (Total £210)
• Two council properties have been recovered as a result of investigations conducted 
giving a notional saving of £36,000.
• One Right to Buy application was blocked after it was found that the tenants 
daughter had forged the signature of the tenant. This prevented a loss of £77,900 
and the daughter received a caution as an alternative to prosecution in connection 
with the false statement.

 The processing time for new claims is 19.5 days which, although outside the target of 
18 days, represents a significant improvement on the 20.7 days achieved in Q2. 
Gravesham’s outturn reflects positively in comparison with the latest national average 
(23 days) and Kent average (22.3 days).

 The latest collection figures are – Council Tax: 96.8% and Business rates: 98.63% 
 The Council Tax collection rate equates to around £50million with £1.6million 

remaining.
 In the past Gravesham have tried incentives to encourage people to pay their Council 

Tax (e.g. cash prize etc.) but it hasn’t been successful; such schemes seem to work 
better at larger authorities.

 Gravesham is trying to encourage the wider use of direct debit; it is advertised on all 
communication that is circulated and more direct debit dates are currently being 
pursued.

 A decision has been made to cease the progression of a shared service for 
Revenues & Benefits with Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council. Other opportunities 
for shared services are currently being explored with further details on their status 
being provided to the Committee at its next meeting. Officers have noted the 
direction from Members that shared services should, wherever possible, be hosted at 
Gravesham and not just at other authorities.

The Committee noted the Corporate Performance Update – Quarter Three 2017-18 (October 
to December 2017).

Page 4



Performance/Administration Cabinet Committee 27.03.2018

3

19. Council Tax Recovery and Housing Benefit  Overpayments 

The Committee received an update on Housing Benefit Overpayments in the form of a 
handout which can be viewed here:

http://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/documents/s42694/Housing%20Benefits%20Overpayments%20Handout.pdf

The Assistant Manager Revenues & Benefits fielded questions from the Committee and 
highlighted the following:

 As at 28 February 2018 the total Housing Benefit debt outstanding is £5,489,694 (3285 
cases)

 From 12 April the Council will be able to access HMRC data which should help to find 
out if someone is employed.

 If the Council are unaware that people have come into the Borough this could potentially 
affect the recovery of an outstanding debt that may be owed.

 It is possible for an individual to have numerous debts with different authorities.
 The data is more accurate now that real time information is being provided by HMRC 

which is demonstrated by overpayments created increasing to £2.5million in 2015-16.
 The Council networks with various groups including; Kent Managers Group, 

Overpayment Groups etc. to maximise the ways debt can be recovered.
 Gravesham has the third highest amount of outstanding Housing Benefit debt with 

Medway first and Thanet second. The Assistant Manager Revenues & Benefits will 
circulate the figures to the Committee.

 Gravesham maximises every route of Housing Benefit recovery.
 Write offs are dealt with as and when the Council has got the debt to write off. The 

Cabinet Member for Performance/Administration signs off debts under £15,000 and 
Cabinet deal with amounts of that amount.

  
The Committee received an update on Council Tax Recovery in the form of a handout which 
can be viewed here:

http://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/documents/s42695/Council%20Tax%20Recovery%20Handout.pdf

The Assistant Manager Local Taxation fielded questions from the Committee and highlighted 
the following:

 Generally GBC collect over 99.5% for both Council Tax and Business Rates using 
various prescribed recovery methods.

 The Council is usually at the bottom of the creditors pile and get nothing the vast majority 
of the time.

 The total Council Tax debt is £6million.
 In the current financial year; there has been a £1.7million reduction for Council Tax and 

£0.5million reduction for Business Rates.
 Court costs are £110 per case for Council Tax and Business Rates, this amount is added 

to the existing debt.
 The Council does still have cases where people don’t pay out of protest (rather than 

financial issues) but they are quite rare.

Page 5

http://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/documents/s42694/Housing%20Benefits%20Overpayments%20Handout.pdf
http://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/documents/s42695/Council%20Tax%20Recovery%20Handout.pdf


Performance/Administration Cabinet Committee 27.03.2018

4

 Only two ‘attachments to earnings’ are allowed at a time (and only 1 for benefits). If other 
attachments are already in place the Council must wait its turn but generally Council Tax 
takes priority (Housing Benefit is quite low down in the pecking order).

 The Council refer cases to Enforcement Agents / Bailiffs where there is no alternative 
method of recovery available. The removal of household goods is very rare; no goods 
were removed this year. 

 In 2017/18, only 4 cases were taken to a committal hearing where the debtor could be 
sent to prison. Once a sentence has been served the debt cannot be collected.

 Debts do have to be written off when there is no way of recovering; e.g. a company goes 
bust or an individual passes away or disappears. If an individual re-appears in the 
Borough the debt will go back on. 

 The Service Manager (Revenues and Benefits) agreed to look into whether the selling on 
of debts to another agency would have to come back for a political decision to be made.

 The Council Tax Team consists of 3.5 staff in the Recovery Team, 3.5 staff who do the 
billing and 2 inspectors. The Customer services Team also provide assistance.

The Committee thanked the officers for an informative update and commended the teams on 
their hard work and great progress with debt recovery.

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 8.58 pm

Page 6



Performance Update: Quarter Four 2017-18 (January to March 2018)

Classification: Public 
  
Key Decision: No
 

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Performance and Administration Committee 

Date: 5 July 2018

Reporting officer: Stuart Bobby – Director (Corporate Services)

Subject: Corporate Performance Update – Quarter Four 2017-18
(January to March 2018)

Purpose and summary of report: 
To present Members of the Performance and Administration Committee with an update 
against the Performance Management Framework, as set out within the council’s Corporate 
Plan 2015-19, for Quarter Four 2017-18 (January to March 2018).
 

Recommendations:

This report is for information purposes only.

1. Introduction

1.1 In October 2015 the council formally adopted its Corporate Plan for 2015-19. The 
plan sets out the council’s vision for the borough, complete with a suite of 
corporate objectives and policy commitments that will shape the council’s 
activities over the four year period.  

1.2 In order to evaluate if the council is effectively achieving against its stated policy 
commitments, and is ultimately delivering consistently high quality services, the 
council needs to have a sound performance management process in place. 
Developed by senior council officers and Cabinet portfolio holders, the council’s 
Corporate Plan presents a Performance Management Framework (PMF) that 
forms the basis of reporting corporate performance to council Members and 
residents.

2. Performance Management Process

2.1 The effective management of the council relies upon good quality and timely 
performance information on which to base informed decisions. The council’s PMF 
presents a range of performance information which includes;

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



Performance Update: Quarter Four 2017-18 (January to March 2018)

 Performance Measures (PM):  These are target-based measures 
identified and established specifically for being essential to the delivery of 
the Corporate Plan’s key objectives e.g. waste recycling rates. 

 Performance Indicators (PI): These represent important contextual 
performance information related to the Corporate Plan’s key objectives. 
PI’s are not target based as the council, whilst having influence over their 
delivery, does not directly control their outcomes e.g. crime statistics.  

2.2 Appendix Two to this report provides Members with an overview of the council’s 
performance against the Performance and Administration portfolio for Quarter 
Four 2017-18 (January to March 2018).   

2.3 Information on performance over the period is presented in tabular form for all 
indicators and graphically for PMs. Where any PMs have not met their set target 
for the quarter, exception notes have been provided for review. In addition, for PIs 
the tables provide ‘direction of travel’ arrows to give Members an indication of 
progress made against the previous reporting period and the respective arrows 
are explained in the key below;

2.4 For future reference, equivalent performance reports will be presented to 
Members of the Committee on a quarterly basis.

2.5 This report is for information purposes only.

3. BACKGROUND PAPERS

3.1 There are no background papers pertaining to this report.

Page 8



Performance Update: Quarter Four 2017-18 (January to March 2018)

IMPLICATIONS                                                                                                             APPENDIX 1 

Legal The council’s Corporate Plan is an integral part of the authority’s policy framework 
as defined by the Constitution. The new Plan will ensure the council has in place an 
effective framework to delivery its responsibilities and delivers better results for 
vulnerable local residents, with the assistance of relevant partner agencies. 

Finance and 
Value for 
Money 

There are no significant costs associated with the monitoring of the council’s 
Corporate Plan from which council activities should be based and which therefore 
should be accounted for as part of on-going financial planning processes.  

Risk 
Assessment

Implementation of a performance management framework allows the council to 
evidence how successful it is in achieving against its stated objectives, and for 
residents it provides genuine accountability in how successfully the council is 
administering its resources.   

Equality 
Impact 
Assessment

Question

a.Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have potential 
to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the community? 
If yes, please explain answer.
N/A

b.Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
N/A

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above.

Corporate 
Plan

The council’s adopted Corporate Plan sets the strategic vision and objectives for 
the authority over the 2015-19 period. This report provides Cabinet with a quarterly 
assessment of how the council is delivering against its objectives through its 
performance management framework.

All future committee reports will be presented in consideration of the new Corporate 
Plan.

Crime and 
Disorder

Community safety is an integral theme of new Corporate Plan and work by the 
council in this area, alongside its key partners, will go towards delivering corporate 
objective 1: ‘a Safer Gravesham’.

Digital and 
website 
implications

In terms of the council's performance management framework, digital implications 
are represented and assessed through the outturns relating to 'PI 49 - web self-help 
forms'. 

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable 
adults

There are no implications in respect of safeguarding children and vulnerable adults.

It should be noted however, that the council's work in safeguarding children and 
vulnerable adults helps contribute towards delivering corporate objective 1: ‘a Safer 
Gravesham’ and corporate objective 2: ‘a Stronger Gravesham’.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Plan 2015-19: Annual Performance Report (2016-17) Delivering for the Community 00
Delivering for the Community

Performance and 
Administration 
Portfolio 

Performance Report 
Q4 2017-18

P
age 11



PI 41

Q1

2016-17

Q2

2016-17

Q3

2016-17

Q4

2016-17

Q1

2017-18

Q2

2017-18

Q3

2017-18

Q4

2017-18

Outturn 80.7% 94.3% 92.9% 87.2% 64.3% 66.7% 79.8% 79.8%

Direction 

of Travel

Performance & Administration Portfolio: Cllr. Derek Shelbrooke

04 Sound & Self-sufficient

Council

"a well-run and innovative council supporting its staff to 

realise commercial opportunities whilst transforming its 

services to deliver at the best possible value for money" 

Policy Commitment 

1. Underpin all council activity with sound governance and internal control measures minimising the

     opportunities for fraud and corruption.

Percentage of internal audit recommendations implemented

At the end of Q4 progress against the annual workplan stood at 91% against a target of 95% completion. This is thought to be good performance 

given the long term sickness of two officers during the year and the vacancy that has been carried since September 2017. A mini restructure of 

the team took place during the final quarter, deleting the post of Audit & Counter Fraud Manager and one Audit & Counter Fraud Officer to 

create an additional Team Leader and a post for an Audit & Counter Fraud Intelligence Analyst. Recruitment to these two posts is in progress and 

has enabled an increase in resource days available for 2018-19.

The Audit & Counter Fraud Charter, Strategy and Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme were all subject to annual review during the 

quarter and have been presented to Audit Committee for approval. In March the Audit Committee also approved the annual workplan for 2018-

19 

An External Quality Assessment (EQA) reviewing the team’s compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards took place during the 

Quarter and the results of that assessment will be shared with Members at the June Audit Committee.

Investigation activity during the quarter has produced the following results and annual figures are reported in brackets;

• £1,215.30 (£4,235.02) of additional council tax owed due to the removal of discounts or exemptions, plus an additional £1914.12 (£5,425.62) in 

future years where discounts no longer apply. 

• No penalties for negligent failure to report changes affecting entitlement to a council tax discount /exemption were issued during the quarter 

but a total of four have been issued over the course of the year. (Four = £280)

• One person received a simple caution relating to a Council Tax Reduction Offence. (Two)

• One council property was recovered as a result of investigations conducted giving a notional saving of £18,000. (Five properties. Notional 

Saving £90,000)

• No results linked to Right to Buy applications during the quarter. (One blocked. Prevented loss of £77,900)

In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, a follow-up process is in place to monitor and ensure that management actions 

have been effectively implemented or that senior management has accepted the risk of not taking action. As of 31 March 2018, 75 of the 94 

recommendations due in the 2017-18 financial year had been implemented; outstanding recommendations relate to: 

• Enhancements to the processes for monitoring planning conditions and obligations,

• Enhancements to NNDR relief applications and verification arrangements for better fraud prevention,

• A review of the council’s business continuity arrangements in respect of IT, 

• Formalisation and implementation of an asset management strategy, 

• Implementation of an updated Homelessness Strategy and review of the Private Housing Enforcement Policy, 

• Enhancements to fraud identification mechanisms within the Right to Buy process, 

• Finalisation of arrangements for Payroll Services to be delivered by Medway Council, 

• Review of processes for excluding suppliers convicted of fraud from procurement processes, 

• Amendments Council Tax procedure notes, 

• Updates to the Use of Council Vehicles Policy, and,  

• Enhancement to arrangements to ensure completeness of 2018-19 service plans and service risk registers. 

Progress made towards implementing outstanding recommendations, including the reasons for non-implementation, are monitored on a 

quarterly basis by the council’s Management Team. Details of all recommendations agreed, implemented and outstanding are provided to the 

council’s Finance & Audit Committee as part of the quarterly and annual A&CF update reports. 

Page 12



PM 11

Q1

2016-17

Q2

2016-17

Q3

2016-17

Q4

2016-17

Q1

2017-18

Q2

2017-18

Q3

2017-18

Q4

2017-18

Outturn 19.6 19.0 18.4 18.0 19.1 20.5 19.6 20.2

Target 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0

Target Met P P P P O O O O

2. Quality frontline services delivered on time and to the right people.

Revenues and Benefits update

New Claims/Changes in Circumstances

New Claims for Housing Benefit were processed on average in 20.2 days which is below the target of 18 days. 

Changes in circumstances were processed on average in 5.1 days which is slightly below the target of 5 days.

This is still a great achievement taking into account the challenges the section has faced over the last year including the ongoing 

rollout of Universal Credit, the proposed shared service with Tonbridge & Malling, a reduction in resources as a result of that and 

a consistently high workload due to the many changes we are now being notified of by the various data matching initiatives that 

have been introduced.

Actions for Improvement

Average time taken to process Housing Benefit / Council Tax new claims (days)

Exception 

Notes

The processing time for new claims is 20.2 days which, although outside the stretching target of 18 days, is better 

placed than the latest available national and Kent averages. This represents a sound achievement for the team 

given the challenges faced over the last year; the ongoing rollout of Universal Credit, the reduction in resources in 

preparation of the now aborted shared service with Tonbridge & Malling, and a consistently high workload. 

Policy Commitment 

Revenues and Benefits update

The section is looking to recruit into vacant posts to increase the resources available in the team. The section is also looking to 

implement Citizens Access which will digitalise the prcessing of HB and CTR claims making it more efficient and improve processing 

times when fully integrated.

(NB: Cumulative Outturn)

16.0

18.0

20.0

22.0

Q1
2016-17

Q2
2016-17

Q3
2016-17

Q4
2016-17

Q1
2017-18

Q2
2017-18

Q3
2017-18

Q4
2017-18

Outturn

Target

Page 13



PM 12

Q1

2016-17

Q2

2016-17

Q3

2016-17

Q4

2016-17

Q1

2017-18

Q2

2017-18

Q3

2017-18

Q4

2017-18

Outturn 2.8 3.2 3.7 3.6 3.7 4.7 5.5 5.1

Target 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0

Target Met P P P P P P O O

Average time taken to process Housing Benefit / Council Tax change of circumstances (days)

Exception 

Notes

(NB: Cumulative Outturn)

The processing time for change of circumstances is 5.1 days, only slightly outside of the set target of 5 days. 

Despite the factors set out for PM 11, Gravesham’s outturn for change of circumstances is well inside the latest 

national and Kent averages, another successful annual outturn. 

0

2

4

6

8

10

1

Outturn

Target

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

Q1
2016-17

Q2
2016-17

Q3
2016-17

Q4
2016-17

Q1
2017-18

Q2
2017-18

Q3
2017-18

Q4
2017-18

Outturn

Target

Page 14



PM 9 (NB: Cumulative Outturn)

Q1

2016-17

Q2

2016-17

Q3

2016-17

Q4

2016-17

Q1

2017-18

Q2

2017-18

Q3

2017-18

Q4

2017-18

Outturn 29.2% 59.8% 84.3% 97.0% 29.4% 57.0% 84.4% 97.0%

Target 29.1% 56.7% 84.3% 97.0% 29.1% 56.5% 84.1% 97.0%

Target Met P P P P P P P P

Actions for Improvement

The council's Management Team continues to receive comprehensive updates from council services regarding the levels of 

outstanding debt across the authority.  The Corporate Debt Working Group continues to focus on addressing the overall debt 

levels across the council and looking at corporate debt solutions, with a current work stream considering the methods of payment 

utilised by the council.  Updates against the action plan are presented to Management Team on a regular basis.

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

Council Tax/Business Rates

Council Tax Collection of 97.04% rounds up to meet our target of 97% and the percentage collected is our highest since 2012/13.

We managed to collect 83% of our working age CTR payer’s debt, which was 1% down on the previous year.

It is excellent considering that working age customers have at least 20% of their annual council tax liability to pay irrespective of 

their income. 

Business Rates Collection of 98.05% is below our target of 99% and is one percent down on last year however final rate was 

affected by a system error, whereby nearly £145,000 was added to an account due to an issue with a transitional relief calculation. 

A lot of work has also been undertaken in respect of reducing previous year Council Tax debts; the arrears reduced by £1.75m the 

highest amount for a few years..  

We have also managed to reduce the Business Rates arrears prior to 1 April 2017 by £412k. We have continued to successfully use 

a company who provide ‘specialist’ services in recovering business rate debt. 

Housing Benefit Overpayments

The amount of Housing Benefit overpayments raised during the year (£1.8m) and the amount of Housing Benefit overpayments 

recovered during the year (£1.3m) has stayed pretty much the same as last year

Percentage of council tax collected

Policy Commitment 

3. Work to maximise income collection through the robust management and recovery of debts owed to the

    council.

Exception 

Notes

The Business Rates collection has dipped this year so the section will look to improve monitoring and recovery of arrears in 

2018/19.

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

1

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

Q1
2016-17

Q2
2016-17

Q3
2016-17

Q4
2016-17

Q1
2017-18

Q2
2017-18

Q3
2017-18

Q4
2017-18

Outturn

Target

Page 15



PM 10 (NB: Cumulative Outturn)

Q1

2016-17

Q2

2016-17

Q3

2016-17

Q4

2016-17

Q1

2017-18

Q2

2017-18

Q3

2017-18

Q4

2017-18

Outturn 30.5% 57.9% 83.9% 99.1% 29.5% 57.1% 83.2% 98.1%

Target 28.5% 57.2% 83.3% 98.5% 29.5% 57.3% 83.6% 99.0%

Target Met P P P P P O O O

PI 42

Q1

2016-17

Q2

2016-17

Q3

2016-17

Q4

2016-17

Q1

2017-18

Q2

2017-18

Q3

2017-18

Q4

2017-18

Outturn £449,402 £474,714 £515,459 £449,172 £299,856 £571,557 £699,855 £347,480

Direction 

of Travel

PI 43

Q1

2016-17

Q2

2016-17

Q3

2016-17

Q4

2016-17

Q1

2017-18

Q2

2017-18

Q3

2017-18

Q4

2017-18

Outturn £311,388 £353,817 £355,314 £331,844 £341,154 £328,234 £341,350 £338,698

Direction 

of Travel

Total amount of housing benefit overpayments recovered

Total amount of housing benefit overpayments raised

Percentage of NNDR collected

Exception 

Notes

At 98.05% the collection rate at year-end was less than 1% below both the target and the equivalent outturn for 

2016-17, at 99% a record for the authority. The final outturn was significantly impacted by a system error, whereby 

nearly £145,000 was added to an account due to an issue with a transitional relief calculation. In addition, the team 

continued to reduce historical debt during 2017-18 with arrears prior to 1 April 2017 being reduced by £412k.

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

1

Outturn

Target

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

Q1
2016-17

Q2
2016-17

Q3
2016-17

Q4
2016-17

Q1
2017-18

Q2
2017-18

Q3
2017-18

Q4
2017-18

Outturn

Target

Page 16



PI 45

Q1

2016-17

Q2

2016-17

Q3

2016-17

Q4

2016-17

Q1

2017-18

Q2

2017-18

Q3

2017-18

Q4

2017-18

Outturn 4% 4% 4% 4% 6% 6% 6% 6%

Direction 

of Travel

Actions for Improvement

Further shared service opportunities will be reviewed and assessed as opportunities arise with Members being advised 

accordingly.

Policy Commitment 

The shared service in respect of Human Resources (HR) went live on 1 April 2018.  A post-implementation review of the shared 

service project will be held in the summer in order to identify any potential learning from this arrangement and the process to 

implement the arrangement, which can be taken into account for future shared working arrangements.

Exploration of a potential shared service for Environmental Health has continued.  This research has however found that, whilst 

some aspects of the service have a comparable delivery other aspects of the service, following discussion with, and input from, 

lead officers at both authorities are much more complex.  This has led both authorities to decide that there are currently 

significant differences in how functions are delivered operationally in the two authorities and at this time, it would not be feasible 

to progress this arrangement further.  It does not however, mean that discussions could not be re-opened in future should 

circumstances change.

A shared service in respect of Licensing is also in the process of being explored and some very initial discussions have taken place 

with colleagues from Medway Council.  If deemed a viable option, a report will be presented to Cabinet outlining the business 

case for the shared arrangement in due course.

% of posts involved in shared services arrangements  

4. Deliver on opportunities for the sharing and selling of council services.

Page 17



Policy Commitment 

5. Continuously review and adapt how we deliver our services to achieve financial efficiencies and improved 

     performance.

No update this quarter.

Page 18


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Corporate Performance Update – Quarter Four 2017-18
	2. Appendix 2 - Q4 2017-18 Performance Report (P&A).pdf




